PLANNING COMMITTEE

Minutes of the Meeting held

Wednesday, 28th June, 2023, 11.00 am

Councillors: Duncan Hounsell (Chair), Ian Halsall (Vice-Chair), Lucy Hodge, Toby Simon, Shaun Hughes, Dr Eleanor Jackson, Tim Warren CBE and Fiona Gourley

12 EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE

The Democratic Services Officer read out the emergency evacuation procedure.

13 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS

Apologies for absence were submitted by Cllr Hal MacFie, Cllr Fiona Gourley was in attendance as his substitute.

14 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

In relation to application 22/04720/FUL - The University Of Bath, Eastern Sports Field, Sports Training Village, University Of Bath Campus, Claverton Down, Bath:

Cllr Tim Warren declared in the interest of transparency, that he had attended a dinner hosted by the University of Bath in 2019 during his time as leader of Council and that having sought legal advice he was able to confirm that this would not prejudice him in considering this item and that he had not prejudged the application.

Cllr Fiona Gourley declared in the interest of transparency, that she had worked at the University of Bath for 3 years 10 years ago and that having sought legal advice she was able to confirm that this would not prejudice her in considering this item and that she had not prejudged the application.

Cllr Duncan Hounsell stated that a number of Members may have had contact with the University but that they fulfilled their legal obligation to consider applications with an open mind.

15 TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIR

There was no urgent business.

16 ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC - TO RECEIVE STATEMENTS, PETITIONS OR QUESTIONS

The Democratic Services Officer informed the meeting of the procedure for making statements on planning applications and that this would be at the time when these items were discussed.

17 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

The minutes of the meeting held on Wednesday 7 June 2023 were confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

18 SITE VISIT LIST - APPLICATIONS FOR PLANNING PERMISSION ETC FOR DETERMINATION BY THE COMMITTEE

There were no site visit applications for consideration.

19 MAIN PLANS LIST - APPLICATIONS FOR PLANNING PERMISSION ETC FOR DETERMINATION BY THE COMMITTEE

The Committee considered:

A report and update report by the Head of Planning on various planning applications under the main applications list.

Oral statements by members of the public and representatives. A copy of the speakers' list is attached as Appendix 1 to these minutes.

RESOLVED that in accordance with the delegated powers, the applications be determined as set out in the Main decisions list attached as Appendix 2 to these minutes.

(1) 22/04431/FUL - Lower Bristol Road, Westmoreland, Bath

The Case Officer introduced her report which considered an application for the redevelopment of the former laundry services site to provide a three-storey building plus inset mansard roof comprising self-storage units with ancillary Business Centre Facility, signage and associated works.

She gave a verbal update in relation to the documents submitted by the applicant with a view to negating the need for pre-commencement conditions:

- 1. The Wildlife Protection and Enhancement Scheme was considered acceptable by the Council's Ecologist and so the relevant condition could be revised to compliance.
- 2. The Council's Arboricultural Officer was reviewing the Tree Protection Plan and Arboricultural Method Statement and as the officer recommendation was delegated to permit, this could be revised once it had been reviewed.

She also reported that a Gull Management Plan had been submitted and reviewed by the Council Officer who considered it to be satisfactory although suggested that further improvements could be made. It was the Case Officer's view that it would not be reasonable to suggest further amendments and recommended revising the precommencement condition to compliance.

She confirmed her recommendation that officers be delegated to permit the application subject to:

- 1. the completion of a Section 106 Agreement to secure:
 - a. A refundable Travel Plan Bond of £77, 443 and non-refundable monitoring

fee of £4,775.

- b. A financial contribution of £6,545 towards Targeted Training and Recruitment
- 2. the conditions set out in the report and additional conditions/amended conditions in the update report and verbal report.

The following public representations were received:

- 1. Mike Lamplough supporting the application.
- 2. Alex Sherman, Bath Preservation Trust, objecting to the application.

In response to Members' questions, it was confirmed:

- 1. In terms of materials, Bath stone ashlar was proposed on the front and a metal cladding on the side with no windows to avoid overlooking. There was a proposed condition to ensure a sample of the materials would be submitted and approved in advance. The applicant had worked with the Council to amend the design in balance with the use of building.
- 2. In relation to the site being a flood risk due to its proximity to the river, the applicant had submitted a sequential test which was passed by appropriate authorities.
- 3. The adjacent St Peters Place was a non-designated heritage asset.
- 4. The proposed storage could benefit small businesses, but it was not restricted to business use and could also be used for residential storage.
- 5. In terms of light shadowing, a study had been carried out and there was some difference during the summer months, but this was not considered to be of significant impact to warrant a refusal.
- 6. The proposed building was tall, but officers considered that its positioning set back on the site mitigated this and the height massing was considered to be acceptable.
- 7. The Economic Development Team supported this type of development as there was an identified need in the city.
- 8. There was no vehicular access from the back of the site and goods would be moved from the site via a loading bay and lift.
- 9. The nearby school was approximately 6-8m from the boundary of the site.

Cllr Ian Halsall stated that the pre-committee site visit was useful to understand the context of the development and that Lower Bristol Road was mixed use in terms of industrial, student accommodation and other residential. In relation to the application, he stated that he was pleased that the employment use of the site was being maintained with economic benefits to support businesses in the city. He expressed the view that although the building was large, it was sensitive to its context; set back into the site with a good design and ecological benefits.

Cllr Shaun Hughes stated that he broadly supported the application; he welcomed a commercial use to balance the recent residential developments and was satisfied that the development was located away from St Peters Place and the road to minimise impact. He stated he hoped that the business model would support the use of the facility by local businesses.

Cllr Lucy Hodge stated that she supported the proposed use of the site but was not happy with the design and was also concerned about the height of the proposed building.

Cllr Eleanor Jackson stated that a reasonable case had been put forward to support the application and she moved the recommendation that officers be delegated to permit the application. This was seconded by Cllr Tim Warren.

On being put to the vote the motion was CARRIED (6 in favour, 2 against):

RESOLVED that officers be delegated to permit the application subject to:

- 1. the completion of a Section 106 Agreement to secure:
 - a. A refundable Travel Plan Bond of £77, 443 and non-refundable monitoring fee of £4,775.
 - b. A financial contribution of £6,545 towards Targeted Training and Recruitment
- 2. the conditions set out in the report and additional conditions/amended conditions in the update report and verbal report.
 - (2) 22/04720/FUL The University Of Bath, Eastern Sports Field, Sports Training Village, University Of Bath Campus, Claverton Down, Bath

The Case Officer introduced her report which considered the application for the construction of a floodlit, recyclable all-weather turf pitch and MultiUse Games Area (MUGA), and additional lighting to the existing training strip.

She reported that:

- 1. Policy SB19 set out the overall development framework plan for the University of Bath Claverton Down Campus and this policy had been updated from the Placemaking Plan through the Local Plan Partial Update (LPPU).
- 2. Policy SB19 set out that new purpose-built student accommodation (PBSA) would be provided on an area which was currently grass pitches and this application for a 3G pitch would replace these grass pitches.
- 3. In terms of the proposed floodlighting, the applicant had submitted a detailed lighting report and the lights would be 18.3m high compared with 15.2m high on the adjacent site.
- 4. In terms of opportunities for community use, the facilities could be booked by members of the public and there was a recommended condition in relation to community use provision.

She confirmed her recommendation that officers be delegated to permit the application subject to:

1. the completion of a Section 106 Agreement to secure the provision of off-site biodiversity net gain and the long-term management of this land.

2. the conditions set out in the report.

The following public representations were received:

- 1. Mark Rose, agent, speaking in support of the application.
- 2. Alex Hansen, local resident and Alex Sherman, Bath Preservation Trust speaking against the application.

Cllr Manda Rigby was in attendance as local ward member and raised the following issues:

- 1. The proposal for floodlighting was not completely compliant with policy SB19 in terms of minimising the amount of dusk to and dawn illumination.
- 2. The height of the proposed fence was obtrusive and created an unsafe area which was out of keeping with the area.
- 3. The Committee should give weight to the objection from the statutory consultee, Sport England.
- 4. She urged the Committee to reject the application as the size and scale of proposed fence and floodlights were not total compliant with policy SB19 and policies relating to sites in areas of outstanding natural beauty.

In response to Members' questions, it was confirmed:

- 1. This application had been submitted in advance of the application for PBSA but there was nothing to preclude this sequence. The application needed to be considered on its merits, but consideration could be given to the reason that the site had been allocated for this use which was to offset the proposed PBSA.
- 2. There was no conflict with this application in relation to any conditions relating to previous consents.
- 3. There was no restriction on certain groups (e.g., staff) using the pitches as they were available for community use.
- 4. In relation to concerns about Bechstein bats, the Council's ecologist and Natural England were satisfied that appropriate mitigations were in place to protect the species. The proposed fence would create a buffer against light spill.
- 5. There were parking facilities on the site and officers did not think there was a risk of vehicles parking elsewhere to access the facilities.
- 6. Sport England had objected on the grounds that the proposed artificial pitches were not considered to be equivalent or better to the existing grass pitches due to design and siting.
- 7. If the Committee was minded to approve the application, the decision may be called in to the Secretary of State due to the Sport England objection. If the Committee was minded to refuse, the applicant could appeal. The financial costs of either scenario was not a material consideration to be weighed in the planning balance, it merely relating to the extent of care that a Committee should take in making its decision.
- 8. A noise assessment had not been required as there were already similar facilities on the site.

- 9. The artificial pitches had a 25-year lifespan.
- 10. The university site was not included in the green belt area and so the proposed fence could not judged against green belt policies.

Cllr Shaun Hughes expressed concern about the impact of the proposed floodlights on the Beckstein bats and the obtrusiveness of the fence and moved that the application be refused. Cllr Eleanor Jackson seconded the motion on the grounds that the proposal was not acceptable in view of the conflict with Council policies relating to the needs of a protected species as evidenced by objectors; the objections raised by Sport England and aesthetic concerns about the fence as well as its impact on the public right of way.

Cllr Ian Halsall agreed that the fencing was obtrusive but recognised that this would be short term due to landscaping and also that the fencing was necessary to protect the bats. He acknowledged that the principle of development had been accepted in the masterplan, but the detail and impact of the application required consideration.

Cllr Tim Warren stated that although he did not like the design of the fence, he recognised that it was necessary to mitigate ecology concerns. He stated that he was minded to support the application as he did not think there were reasons to justify a refusal.

Cllr Toby Simon stated that it was difficult to sustain an ecology objection without the support of the Council's Ecologist and that the high fence was required to mitigate ecology concerns. He did not consider there to be an impact on local residents and did not consider the arguments strong enough to support refusing the application.

In response to a question as to whether the Committee could consider an alternative proposal to delegate to permit the development with alternative plans coming back to address the light spill and ecological concerns, the Team Manager (Development Management) confirmed that the Committee could only make a decision on the application as submitted.

On being put to the vote the motion was NOT CARRIED (2 in favour, 6 against)

Cllr Ian Halsall stated that the negative issues were outweighed by the public benefit and that landscaping would reduce the impact of the fence.

He moved that officers be delegated to permit the application for the reasons set out in the report. This was seconded by Cllr Toby Simon.

On being put to the vote the motion was CARRIED (6 in favour, 2 against).

RESOLVED that officers be delegated to permit the application subject to:

- 1. the completion of a Section 106 Agreement to secure the provision of off-site biodiversity net gain and the long-term management of this land
- 2. the conditions set out in the report.
 - (3) 23/00895/FUL Waterworks Cottage, Charlcombe Way, Fairfield Park, Bath

The Case Officer introduced her report which considered the erection of two detached dwellings with associated means of access, car parking and associated infrastructure following the demolition of existing dwelling and outbuilding.

She gave a verbal update to list the plans as these were omitted from the original report. She also reported that one additional objection had been received in relation to issues that had already been addressed in the report. She confirmed that there was prior approval to demolish the cottage under permitted development rights and so the principle of the loss of the cottage had been established.

She confirmed her recommendation that permission be granted subject to the conditions set out in the report.

The following public representations were received:

- 1. Tom Rocke, agent supporting to the application.
- 2. Chris Parkin, local resident, objecting to the application.

Cllr Joanna Wright was in attendance as local ward member and raised the following issues:

- 1. The previous application was refused, and this was upheld on appeal.
- 2. The new application was an over-development of the site and would cause harm to the character and appearance of the area.
- 3. There were residential amenity concerns including overlooking of the neighbouring property.
- 4. There were concerns that the historic migration route of toads would be lost.
- 5. There was poor transport accessibility for plot 2.

She asked the Committee to refuse the application or defer for a site visit.

In response to Members' questions, it was confirmed:

- 1. The application met sustainable construction standards and the design of the roofs were considered acceptable.
- 2. The site was accessible by bus services.
- 3. The Council's ecologist had not objected to the application subject to the measures to protect the migration of amphibians as set out in the conditions.
- 4. In terms of overlooking, it was the officer view that the distance between properties was acceptable and would not warrant refusal of the application. There were no objective standards for overlooking, this was a planning judgement.
- 5. The omission of the plans list from the report was not a reason to delay making a decision as they were available on the website and had been read out to the committee in the oral update.

Cllr Eleanor Jackson proposed that a decision be deferred pending a visit to the site. She stated that the site was located on the threshold of the suburban and rural areas, and it was only possible to understand the balance by visiting the site. This was seconded by Cllr Lucy Hodge.

Cllr Shaun Hughes agreed with the proposal for a site visit due to the unusual topography of the site.

Cllrs Ian Halsall and Toby Simon expressed the view that the Committee had enough information to take a decision without visiting the site.

On being put to the vote the motion was CARRIED (5 in favour, 3 against).

RESOLVED that a decision be deferred pending a site visit.

(4) 23/01067/VAR - Land Between Three Gables And Paysons Croft, Church Lane, Bishop Sutton

The Planning Officer introduced the report which considered an application for the variation of condition 7 of application 20/00257/FUL (Erection of dwelling). She confirmed that the application was a variation to the original application under Section 73 of the Town and Country Planning Act.

She confirmed the officer recommendation that the application be permitted subject to the conditions set out in the report.

The following public representations were received:

1. Nigel Clarke, agent, speaking in support of the application.

In response to Members' questions, it was confirmed:

- 1. The Committee could not make a decision on the principle of development as this had already been established by permitting the original application. Only the variation to condition 7 could be considered which sought to modify the design of the dwelling.
- 2. The footpath of the new design was smaller than the original design.
- 3. The new design included solar panels and was more sustainable than the previous design. There were no properties to the rear and so there would be no visual impact caused by the solar panels.
- 4. The type of variation that was acceptable under the Section 73 process was determined by statute and case law and this application had been legitimately made under that section.
- 5. The application had been referred to the committee under the scheme of delegation because the Parish Council had raised objections.

Cllr Ian Halsall stated that the variation was an improved and more sustainable design and proposed that permission be granted. This was seconded by Cllr Lucy Hodge.

On being put to the vote the motion was CARRIED (8 in favour, 0 against - unanimously)

RESOLVED that permission be granted subject to the conditions set out in the report.

20 NEW PLANNING APPEALS LODGED, DECISIONS RECEIVED AND DATES OF FORTHCOMING HEARINGS/INQUIRIES

In relation to the questions the Team Manager (Development Manager) confirmed:

- 1. 22/00722/AR Garfunkels, Orange Grove, City Centre the appeal was allowed/dismissed in part and there were no costs awarded against the Council.
- 2. Enforcement investigations were confidential and so these details were not available on the website.
- 3. Officers would look into including hyperlinks in the report to link to more details about the appeal cases.

RESOLVED that the report be noted. **20230628 Speaking List**

The meeting ended at 3.05 pr	n
Chair	
Date Confirmed and Signed	



BATH AND NORTH EAST SOMERSET COUNCIL

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND REPRESENTATIVES SPEAKING AT THE MEETING OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE ON WEDNESDAY 28 JUNE 2023

MAIN PLANS LIST			
ITEM NO.	SITE NAME	NAME	FOR/AGAINST
1 22/04431/FUL - Lower Bristol Road, Westmoreland, Bath	Mike Lamplough	Supporting	
	Alex Sherman, Bath Preservation Trust	Objecting	
2 22/04720/FUL - The University Of Bath, Eastern Sports Field, Sports Training Village, University Of Bath Campus, Claverton Down, Bath	Mark Rose, agent	Supporting	
	Alex Hansen/ Alex Sherman, Bath Preservation Trust (sharing 3 minutes)	Objecting	
	Cllr Manda Rigby	Local Ward Member	
3 23/00895/FUL – Waterworks Cottage, Charlcombe Way, Fairfield Park, Bath	Tom Rocke, agent	Supporting	
	Chris Parkin	Objecting	
		Cllr Joanna Wright	Local Ward Member
4	23/01067/VAR - Land Between Three Gables And Paysons Croft, Church Lane, Bishop Sutton	Nigel Clarke, agent	Supporting

This page is intentionally left blank

Bath & North East Somerset Council

BATH AND NORTH EAST SOMERSET COUNCIL PLANNING COMMITTEE 28th June 2023 DECISIONS

Item No: 01

Application No: 22/04431/FUL

Site Location: Regency Laundry Service, Lower Bristol Road, Westmoreland, Bath

Ward: Westmoreland Parish: N/A LB Grade: N/A

Application Type: Full Application

Proposal: Redevelopment of the former laundry services site to provide three

storey building plus inset mansard roof comprising self-storage units (Use Class B8) with ancillary Business Centre Facility, signage and

associated works

Constraints: Article 4 HMO, Agricultural Land Classification, Air Quality

Management Area, Policy B4 WHS - Indicative Extent, Policy B4 WHS - Boundary, Policy CP9 Affordable Housing, Flood Zone 2, LLFA - Flood Risk Management, MOD Safeguarded Areas,

Ecological Networks Policy NE5, SSSI - Impact Risk Zones,

Applicant: Vanguard Holdings Limited

Expiry Date: 14th July 2023
Case Officer: Isabel Daone

DECISION Delegate to PERMIT

Item No: 02

Application No: 22/04720/FUL

Site Location: Eastern Sports Field, Sports Training Village, University Of Bath

Campus, Claverton Down

Ward: Bathwick Parish: N/A LB Grade: N/A

Application Type: Full Application

Proposal: Construction of a floodlit, recyclable all-weather turf pitch and Multi-

Use Games Area (MUGA), and additional lighting to the existing

training strip.

Constraints: Article 4 HMO, Colerne Airfield Buffer, Agricultural Land

Classification, Policy B4 WHS - Indicative Extent, Policy B4 WHS - Boundary, Policy CP9 Affordable Housing, Policy LCR5 Safeguarded existg sport & R, MOD Safeguarded Areas, Policy NE1 Green Infrastructure Network, Policy NE2 AONB, Policy NE2A Landscapes and the green set, Policy NE3 SNCI, Ecological Networks Policy NE5, Ecological Networks Policy NE5, Placemaking Plan Allocated Sites,

SSSI - Impact Risk Zones,

Applicant: Estates Department, The University Of Bath

Expiry Date: 28th July 2023

Case Officer: Isabel Daone

DECISION refer to planning casework unit - Delegate to PERMIT, notify secretary of state

Item No: 03

Application No: 23/00895/FUL

Site Location: Waterworks Cottage, Charlcombe Way, Fairfield Park, Bath

Ward: Lambridge Parish: N/A LB Grade: N/A

Application Type: Full Application

Proposal: Erection of two detached dwellings with associated means of access,

car parking and associated infrastructure following demolition of

existing dwelling and outbuilding (Resubmission).

Constraints: Article 4 HMO, Colerne Airfield Buffer, Agric Land Class 3b,4,5, Policy

B4 WHS - Indicative Extent, Policy B4 WHS - Boundary, Policy CP9 Affordable Housing, MOD Safeguarded Areas, Policy NE2A Landscapes and the green set, Ecological Networks Policy NE5,

SSSI - Impact Risk Zones,

Applicant: Mr & Mrs J & S Flavell

Expiry Date: 10th May 2023

Case Officer: Samantha Mason

DECISION Defer for site visit 17th July 2023

Item No: 04

Application No: 23/01067/VAR

Site Location: Land Between Three Gables And Paysons Croft, Church Lane,

Bishop Sutton, Bristol

Ward: Chew Valley Parish: Stowey Sutton LB Grade: N/A

Application Type: Application for Variation of Condition

Proposal: Variation of condition 7 of application 20/00257/FUL (Erection of

dwelling).

Constraints: Bristol Airport Safeguarding, Agric Land Class 1,2,3a, Coal - Standing

Advice Area, Policy CP9 Affordable Housing, Housing Development Boundary, Policy NE1 Green Infrastructure Network, Policy NE2 AONB, Policy NE2A Landscapes and the green set, Ecological Networks Policy NE5, Strategic Nature Areas Policy NE5, Neighbourhood Plan, Policy ST1 Promoting sustainable travel, Policy

ST8 Safeguarded Airport & Aerodro,

Applicant: Mr S Croucher
Expiry Date: 30th June 2023
Case Officer: Angus Harris

DECISION PERMIT

1 Standard Time Limit (Compliance)

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before 2 July 2023.

Reason: As required by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) and to avoid the accumulation of unimplemented planning permission.

2 Materials - Submission of Materials Schedule (Bespoke Trigger)

No construction of the external walls of the development shall commence until a schedule of materials and finishes to be used in the construction of the external surfaces, including roofs, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The schedule shall include:

- 1. Detailed specification of the proposed materials (Type, size, colour, brand, quarry location, etc.);
- 2. Photographs of all of the proposed materials;
- 3. An annotated drawing showing the parts of the development using each material.

Samples of any of the materials in the submitted schedule shall be made available at the request of the Local Planning Authority.

The development shall thereafter be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: In the interests of the appearance of the development and the surrounding area in accordance with policy CP6 of the Bath and North East Somerset Core Strategy,

policies D1, D2 and D3 of the Bath and North East Somerset Placemaking Plan and Policy D5 of the Bath and North Somerset Local Plan Partial Update.

3 Parking (Compliance)

The area allocated for parking, as indicated on submitted plan reference 2210/011 Revision B, shall be kept clear of obstruction and shall not be used other than for the parking of vehicles in connection with the development hereby permitted.

Reason: To ensure sufficient parking and turning areas are retained at all times in the interests of amenity and highways safety in accordance with Policy ST7 of the Bath and North East Somerset Local Plan Partial Update.

4 Bound/Compacted Vehicle Access (Pre-occupation)

No occupation of the development shall commence until the vehicular access has been constructed with a bound and compacted surfacing material (not loose stone or gravel).

Reason: To prevent loose material spilling onto the highway in the interests of highways safety in accordance with Policy ST7 of the Bath and North East Somerset Local Plan Partial Update.

5 Construction Management Plan (Pre-commencement)

No development shall commence until a Construction Management Plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and shall include details of deliveries (including storage arrangements and timings), contractor parking, traffic management, working hours, site opening times, wheel wash facilities and site compound arrangements. The development shall thereafter be undertaken in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure that safe operation of the highway and in the interests of protecting residential amenity in accordance with Policy ST7 of the Bath and North East Somerset Local Plan Partial Update. This is a condition precedent because any initial construction or demolition works could have a detrimental impact upon highways safety and/or residential amenity.

5 Bicycle Storage (Pre-occupation)

No occupation of the development shall commence until bicycle storage for at least two bicycles has been provided in accordance with details which have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The bicycle storage shall be retained permanently thereafter.

Reason: To secure adequate off-street parking provision for bicycles and to promote sustainable transport use in accordance with Policy ST7 of the Bath and North East Somerset Local Plan Partial Update.

6 Infiltration testing and soakaway (Pre-Occupation)

The development hereby permitted is to manage surface water onsite using soakaways as indicated on the application form and/or approved drawings. Soakaways are to be designed and constructed in accordance with Building Regulations Approved Document Part H section 3, noting the requirement for infiltration testing which should be undertaken at an early stage of the development to confirm viability of infiltration techniques.

If the infiltration test results demonstrate that soakaways are not appropriate, an alternative method of surface water drainage shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

The soakaways or other approved method of surface water drainage shall be installed prior to the occupation of the development.

Reason: To ensure that an appropriate method of surface water drainage is installed and in the interests of flood risk management in accordance with Policy CP5 of the Bath and North East Somerset Core Strategy and Policy SU1 of the Bath and North East Somerset Placemaking Plan.

7 Plans List (Compliance)

The development/works hereby permitted shall only be implemented in accordance with the plans as set out in the plans list below.

Reason: To define the terms and extent of the permission.

PLANS LIST:

This decision relates to the following plans:

Drawing	17 Mar 2023	PROPOSED ELEVATIONS
Drawing	17 Mar 2023	PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR PLAN
Drawing	17 Mar 2023	PPROPOSED GROUND FLOOR PLA
Drawing	17 Mar 2023	PROPOSED SITE PLAN
OS Extract	17 Mar 2023	LOCATION PLAN

Permit/Consent Decision Making Statement

In determining this application the Local Planning Authority considers it has complied with the aims of paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

Condition Categories

The heading of each condition gives an indication of the type of condition and what is required by it. There are 4 broad categories:

Compliance - The condition specifies matters to which you must comply. These conditions do not require the submission of additional details and do not need to be discharged.

Pre-commencement - The condition requires the submission and approval of further information, drawings or details before any work begins on the approved development. The condition will list any specific works which are exempted from this restriction, e.g. ground investigations, remediation works, etc.

Pre-occupation - The condition requires the submission and approval of further information, drawings or details before occupation of all or part of the approved development.

Bespoke Trigger - The condition contains a bespoke trigger which requires the submission and approval of further information, drawings or details before a specific action occurs.

Please note all conditions should be read fully as these headings are intended as a guide only.

Where approval of further information is required you will need to submit an application to Discharge Conditions and pay the relevant fee via the Planning Portal at www.planningportal.co.uk or post to Planning Services, Lewis House, Manvers Street, Bath, BA1 1JG.

Community Infrastructure Levy - General Note for all Development

You are advised that as of 6 April 2015, the Bath & North East Somerset Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Charging Schedule came into effect. CIL may apply to new developments granted by way of planning permission as well as by general consent (permitted development) and may apply to change of use permissions and certain extensions. **Before** commencing any development on site you should ensure you are familiar with the CIL process. If the development approved by this permission is CIL liable there are requirements to assume liability and notify the Council **before any development commences**.

Do not commence development until you been notified in writing by the Council that you have complied with CIL; failure to comply with the regulations can result in surcharges, interest and additional payments being added and will result in the forfeiture of any instalment payment periods and other reliefs which may have been granted.

Community Infrastructure Levy - Exemptions and Reliefs Claims

The CIL regulations are non-discretionary in respect of exemption claims. If you are intending to claim a relief or exemption from CIL (such as a "self-build relief") it is important that you understand and follow the correct procedure **before** commencing **any** development on site. You must apply for any relief and have it approved in writing by the Council then notify the Council of the intended start date **before** you start work on site. Once development has commenced you will be unable to claim any reliefs retrospectively and CIL will become payable in full along with any surcharges and mandatory interest charges. If you commence development after making an exemption or relief claim but before the claim is approved, the claim will be forfeited and cannot be reinstated.

Full details about the CIL Charge including, amount and process for payment will be sent out in a CIL Liability Notice which you will receive shortly. Further details are available here: www.bathnes.gov.uk/cil. If you have any queries about CIL please email cil@BATHNES.GOV.UK

Responding to Climate Change (Informative):

The council is committed to responding to climate change. You are advised to consider sustainable construction when undertaking the approved development and consider using measures aimed at minimising carbon emissions and impacts on climate change.

This page is intentionally left blank